DEJAN M. RADOVANOVIC UDK 725.182(497.11)
008:7.025(497.11)

Regional Institute for the Protection DOI https:/doi.org/10.18485/arh_whc50.2023.ch9
of Cultural Monuments Smederevo
/Serbia/

Smederevo Fortress from Capital Town to World Heritage

ABSTRACT

The construction of the Smederevo Fortress from 1428 to 1439 repre-
sented a unique construction undertaking, not only in terms of construc-
tion and organization, but also in cultural, historical and symbolic terms.
It was built in a period of dramatic historical events at the contact area
between Europe and Asia during the decline of the Byzantine Empire
and the birth of the new Ottoman Empire on its ruins. Despot Durad
Brankovi¢ built a new capital city of medieval Serbia, which became its
dynamic center, but in a symbolic sense it was also an undertaking of a
fateful character for the preservation of the state and people before the
Ottoman conquest.

With the fall of Smederevo in 1459, the historical course of the
medieval Serbian state ends, and its epic life in legends begins, as a uni-
tying symbol of the heroism and tragedy of the Serbian people. The life
of the city of Smederevo continued in the following centuries within
the framework of the Ottoman and Austrian states, and in 1805, during
the restoration of Serbian statehood, as the first freed city and seat of
the Governing Soviet, it became the thread that connects medieval and
modern Serbia in a broad historical arc.

The 20" century brought the greatest destruction to Smederevo
Fortress in the wars, but also great research and reconstruction, and at
the same time, its new appreciation as an important part of the national
monumental heritage. The process of proving its universal values as a basis
for it to become part of UNESCO’s world heritage is underway.
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INTRODUCTION

The construction of the fortified city of Smederevo, its sudden development and im-
portance, followed by a tragic decline, numerous destructions and restorations, as well
as subsequent research and new life, became inseparable parts of almost six hundred
years of duration, which is deeply woven into the historical, cultural and spiritual
tradition of the Serbian people.

During the 19" and early 20™ century, the city of Smederevo retained only its mili-
tary role, which the grandiose towers and ramparts emphasized, and the insufficiently
visible and unexplored urban structure within the former city strengthened. Thus, over
time, the name Smederevo Fortress became established, which does not reflect all the
importance, influence, symbolism and stratification of the city of Smederevo in the
architectural, spatial-historical and civilizational context.

Despite the great attention of researchers and valuable knowledge, which com-
pleted the overall picture of the Smederevo Fortress over time, many unknown facts
and dilemmas remained. Scientific disputes and disproportionate interest in certain
topics and historical periods have created an unbalanced picture of the past and to a
significant extent diverted attention from the unsatisfactory state, status and future of
the very subject of research and dispute.

This is precisely why there is an increasingly pronounced need to direct atten-
tion to the indisputable facts and values related to the Smederevo Fortress, in order to
open up space for a sharper and more refined perception of its past, deeper layers of
value and meaning, and at the same time for a more comprehensive consideration of
its future development, social roles and influence. We hope that this article, created in
that aspiration, will contribute to the process of proving its authenticity and universal
value, as the basic criteria for inclusion on the World Heritage List.

SPATIAL DIMENSION

The confluence of the Great Morava and the Danube is one of the main strategic points
of the Balkan Peninsula and the Pannonian Plain, determined by the spatial-historical
importance and mythical power of the Danube, whose banks and flow unite and
separate times and people. It is emphasized by the vast Morava Valley, which connects
the entire Peninsula like a pivot. It is part of a wider contact space of interpenetrat-
ing Central European, Transcarpathian, Black Sea, Asia Minor, Mediterranean and
indigenous Balkan cultural influences.

The natural advantages for crossing the Danube right near its mouth make it an
important crossroads of water and land routes, whose direct or indirect control gives
a tactical advantage in peacetime, and especially in wartime circumstances. From a
military-strategic perspective, it has predominantly defensive importance from the
point of view of the inhabitants on the right bank of the Danube, in contrast to the
zone where the Sava meets the Danube, which has a distinctly offensive character.
The positions of Margum and Kuli¢ Town on the right and Old Town near Kovin
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Transfer of the Relics of St. Luka in Smederevo, fresco in the
Church of St. Georgie in Smederevo, A. Bicenko 1935-1937
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on the left bank of the Danube played a key role in the immediate control of this
traffic junction.

It was geostrategic reasons that decisively influenced Despot Purad Brankovi¢ to
decide to build a new capital near Smederevo, 40 km downstream from Belgrade and
10 km upstream from the confluence of the Great Morava and the Danube. This choice,
in the short term, provided the possibility for political balancing between Hungarian
and Turkish interests, which were facing each other in this area. At the same time, it
was important for the long-term positioning and control of space, because the place
had good military-strategic possibilities for defense, traffic connections for the devel-
opment of trade, enough space for the expansion of the city in the future, and nature
in the hinterland, which has always been favorable for life.

TIME VERTICAL

Traces of life in the immediate environment have been discovered continuously since
prehistoric times. In that broad chronological arc, the time of the construction of the
Smederevo Fortress and thirty years in the capital represent a historical turning point
in the time of the clash of civilizations and the end of the medieval era.

During the six hundred years of its existence, the managing changed, and the
population changed for the most part, its roles and importance changed, but continuity
and symbolic value were preserved, to which insufficient attention was paid.

Since its construction, it has gone through six key periods:

= The period of the capital, from the beginning of construction in 1428 until its
fall in 1459, was marked by accelerated construction, development and reach-
ing the greatest rise and importance. After the sudden death of the Despot
Stefan Lazarevi¢ on 19 July 1427, the new ruler of Serbia, Purad Brankovic,
had to hand over the capital Belgrade, as well as a number of other cities and
areas to the Hungarians', according to the previously concluded agreement.
The Ottomans occupied Krusevac, Ni$ and Golubac, and other larger cities
were unsuitable for the new capital. In such complex and very unfavorable
circumstances, the Despot built a completely new city in which to rule. Most of
his reign until his death in 1456 was marked precisely by the construction and
restoration of Smederevo and the uncertainty of preserving the state, despite
the skillful combination of diplomatic, military and economic methods.

= The period of stable Ottoman rule and westward expansion, from 1459 to the
second siege of Vienna in 1683. Immediately after the conquest, Smederevo
became the seat of the newly founded Smederevo Sandzak. Since then, the city
has developed even more rapidly in accordance with the new role it has been

1 On historical circumstances before the construction of the Smederevo Fortress, see: M. Spremi¢, Despot
Durad Brankovic i njegovo doba, Beograd 2021, 95-129.
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given. After the conquest of Belgrade in 1521 and the victory at Mohécs in 1526,
the border of the Ottoman Empire was moved to the north and was stabilized
for a long time, and Smederevo gradually lost its previous central role, first for
controlling the border on the Danube, and then as the main base for further
conquests in the north.? The seat of the Sandzak was transferred to Belgrade
in 1521, but the name of the Sandzak officially remained unchanged until the
end of the Ottoman rule in Serbia, although in the literature the name Belgrade
Pashaluk is more often used, which is incorrect.?

A period of instability and Austrian expansion to the east, from the second
unsuccessful Ottoman siege of Vienna in 1683 to the Treaty of Sistova in 1791.
It was marked by the gradual decline of Ottoman power and the rise of Austria,
which at the end of the 17™ century extended its power first to the left bank of
the Danube, and then on three occasions further south to the greater part of
the Smederevo Sandzak. Smederevo was in Austrian possession: from 1688 to
1690, from 1718 to 1739, when it became the seat of one of the 11 established
districts, and from 1789 to 1791 during Kocina Krajina. In these conflicts, the
Serbs massively sided with Christian Austria, whose military successes were
short-lived, and the negative consequences for the people after each return to the
Ottoman Empire were long-lasting, because due to catastrophic war destruction
and reprisals, two large migrations of the Serbian population were initiated.*

In the period of restoration and stabilization of Serbian statehood, from the rise
of the First Serbian Uprising in 1804 to the beginning of the First World War in
1914, Smederevo Fortress gradually became an exclusively military fortification.
The center of city life was moved outside the ramparts to the zone of the former
suburbs. In the process of liberation from Turkish rule, Smederevo played an
important symbolic role, as the old capital and the first liberated city in 1805,
where until 1807 it was the seat of the insurgent government — the Serbian Gov-
erning Council, the first institution of the restored Serbian state. The Turkish
army permanently left a number of Serbian towns, including Smederevo in 1867,
and the Serbian army entered the Fortress. Soon after, a pier and a railway line
were built in front of the town rampart itself as symbols of the new era.

= In the period of the world wars from 1914 to the end of 1944, the Smederevo
Fortress tragically suffered and became a kind of symbol of destruction, due

On historical circumstances and the role of Smederevo at the end of the 15" and during the 16" cen-
tury, see: O. Zirojevi¢, Smederevo od pada pod tursku vlast do kraja XVI veka, Beograd 1970, 193-200;
S. Kati¢, B. Popovi¢, Smederevska varos od 1459. godine do kraja 16. veka, Istorijski ¢asopis 62 (2013)
79-116.

M. Pavlovi¢, Smedrevski sandzak 1739-1788, vojno-administrativno uredenje, Novi Sad 2017, 7-8.

R. Tri¢kovi¢, Beogradski pasaluk 1687-1739, Beograd 2013; D. Mikavica, et al., Srbi u Habsburskoj mo-
narhiji od 1526. do 1918. 1, Beograd 2016.
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to the catastrophic explosion on 5 June 1941, when it protected the then town
outside the ramparts and the devastating artillery and airplane bombardments
in 1915 and in 1944. The strategic importance of the place was demonstrated in
the First World War, during the second attack on Serbia in 1915, when the main
attack of the German army, the forcing of the Danube and the deep penetration
through the Morava Valley, were carried out near Smederevo.

The period of arrangement and restoration of the Smederevo Fortress began
after the explosion in 1941 and continues until today. It acquired a systematic
character in 1946, when it was declared a cultural monument, and in 1947,
when its military purpose was abolished. By turning it into a public space with a
monumental character, preconditions were created for its decades-long research,
protection, conservation and restoration, and at the same time for arrangement,
appropriate evaluation and use. Being placed on the Tentative List of UNESCO's
World Heritage in 2010 opened up possibilities for a new step forward and
symbolically the beginning of a new life for the Smederevo Fortress.

BUILDERS

The construction process was a flywheel for gathering a lot of brave people of various
knowledge and skills, who inextricably connected their destinies with the new capital
city and breathed life and renewing energy into it for a long time. Unjustified, mostly
people and their lives remained in the shadow of the building itself and the sequence
of historical events.

Very soon, all the most important functions that the capital had to have as the seat
of secular and spiritual power, the most important military stronghold, the center of
economic, commercial and cultural life were united in Smederevo. It had its own mint,’
(fig. 1) but also a rich palace library.® In 1453, when the relics of St. Luka were transferred
from Rogos, (fig. 2) it also received an important medieval symbol of spiritual patronage,
and in the case of Smederevo, the last hope for the salvation of the Serbian state.”

Written testimonies about the construction and life of the city during the
first three decades of Smederevo’s existence are mostly circumstantial, and thus
assemble an unfinished mosaic from which emerge the names of notable persons,
merchants, monks, soldiers, craftsmen, travel writers, as well as data that speak of
the people who participated in origin and development of the city.® Thousands of

5  V.Ivani$evi¢, Novac despota Purda, Pad Srpske despotovinel459. godine, Naucni skupovi SANU 134, Odel-
jenje istorijskih nauka 32 (2011) 417-428.

6  L.Pavlovi¢, et al., Rukopisna i Stampana knjiga u Smederevu od 1430-1846. godine, in Smederevske biblio-
teke, knjige i biblioteke u smederevskom kraju od 1430. do danas, Smederevo 1986, 7-57.

7 D. Popovi¢, Pod okriljem svetosti: Kult svetih viadara i relikvija u srednjovekovnoj Srbiji, Beograd 2006,
295-317.

8  About the historical circumstances during the construction of the Smederevo Fortress see Spremi¢, op. cit.
130-159.
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workers and craftsmen of various profiles were involved in the entire process, from
the preparation of the material and its transfer to installation, which had to be very
well organized in order for the entire system to function and give fast and high-
quality results. Local and foreign Greek craftsmen participated in the construction,
and a special role was played by George Kantakouzenos, brother of Despina Jerina
(wife of Purad Brankovi¢).

In accordance with the spirit of the times, there is no information in the official
records about the difficulties and efforts during the construction. Simply as a kind of
emanation of God, the city was “built’, as it says on the monumental founding inscrip-
tion.” On the contrary, in verbal folklore, legends and especially in epic folk poems,"
many details were preserved very vividly and directly, about the dilemmas, concerns
and issues of the people of that time, torn between the uncertainty of everyday life filled
with renunciations and suppressed, necessary hope for survival. Although hierarchi-
cally extremely divided medieval society, in the given historical circumstances, which
implied radical measures and painful concessions, the lives of the ruler, his family and
the people were completely intertwined and closely connected by a common destiny.

CONSTRUCTION

The grandeur of the entire project of building the Smederevo Fortress was especially
emphasized by the fact that there were no quarries in the vicinity of Smederevo. That
was contributed by the complex and very unfavorable historical circumstances in which
it was created, the extraordinary speed of construction, even by modern standards,
technical capabilities and the imposing size.

All types of stone that could be reached were used in the construction, often
from locations over 50 km away. Stone from old ancient fortifications (Mons Au-
reus, Margum, Viminacium, Lederata...), limestone from quarry in Perdap gorge
and Homolje, slate from Ram, sandstone from Karaula, river pebbles, and to a lesser
extent old and new bricks were incorporated. Large quantities were also necessary:
lime and sand for binding, oak beams for reinforcing the walls and iron wedges for
joining the timber.

The great haste and diverse materials also resulted in a highly functional attitude
towards construction, but despite this, the careful processing of the stone carvings
around the gates, porticoes and windows, as well as the decoration with geometric
motifs in a combination of stone and brick, are noticeable, especially on the Danube
rampart. The builders had a special relationship with the numerous Roman spolia and
old medieval tombstones, which were placed so that they could be viewed.

The location in the plain was chosen, quite unusual for that time, as well as the
triangular shape of the base of the fortification, which was determined by the flows of
the Danube and Jezava at its mouth (fig. 3).

9 1j. Stojanovi¢, Stari srpski zapisi i natpisi I, Beograd — Sremski Karlovci 1902, 84.
10 M. Deteli¢, Epski gradovi: Leksikon, Beograd 2007, 394-396.
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Construction began with the permission of Sultan Murat II in the spring of
1428." First, until 1430, a Fortified Castle was built at the very mouth (most often
called “Little Town”). The monumental founding inscription of the Despot Purad
on the facade of tower 4 on the southern rampart reliably testifies to the time of its
construction (fig. 4)."

Then, until 1439, the construction of the city ramparts and towers on the Varos$
rampart and Jezava rampart was successively continued and mostly completed (fig. 5).
After 1444, four towers were added on Dunav rampart and one on the eastern rampart
of the Fortified Castle, and the Varo$ rampart was strengthened by digging a water ditch
and building a part of the outer rampart with cannon openings.

Thus, a strong defensive system was rounded off, on an area of less than 11 hect-
ares, which consisted of the main rampart almost 1500 m long, 2 to 5 m wide, with 25
massive, basically square, projecting towers and the outer ring of the lower protective
rampart surrounded by water obstacles.

The construction plan was based on the best traditions of the military architec-
ture of the Byzantine world and the Serbian experience in warfare with cold weapons.
The use of artillery, which appeared during construction, became more lethal and
important. That is why certain modifications and adaptations to the new way of war-
fare were already carried out during construction. After the conquest, the Fortress
was additionally strengthened for warfare with firearms in 1480, by adding three
polygonal cannon towers at the corners, a pentagonal cannon tower in front of the
main entrance and by closing the outer wall around the town.

The area of the Fortified Castle was built as a separate functional unit with a
strong rampart, a dominant tower of the last defense (Donjon), a double gate at the en-
trance and an auxiliary gate towards the Danube, four massive towers on the southern
rampart and a later added smaller tower on the Jezava rampart. Its triangular shape
determined the spatial arrangement in the interior. Although it has been completely
archaeologically explored, due to its poor preservation, we can only partially glimpse
the interior architecture. It had three buildings leaning on ramparts and a spacious
square with a well. The most representative object was the building with a hall for
ceremonial receptions on the first floor and three preserved, carefully carved double
windows (biforis), of the Gothic type, facing the Danube. On the same level, there
was also a smaller room with a double Romanesque window. The windows were built
inside the wall mass of the ramparts, and each represented a separate sub-unit, with
stone benches, emphasizing comfort and intimacy (fig. 6). Opposite it, along the
southern rampart, is the Palace for the stay of the Despot’s family and courtiers, and
along the Jezava rampart is the auxiliary building for the needs of the castle.

The area of the town (most often called the “Great Town”) has been archaeologi-
cally explored to a lesser extent, so we only know a small part of its urban structure

11 Spremic, op. cit. 132.
12 S.Nenadovi¢, Konzervacija natpisa na despotovoj kuli u Smederevu, Muzeji 6 (1951) 151-160.
13 P. Popovi¢, Spomenica petstogodisnjice Smederevskog grada, Beograd 1931, 109-110.
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in relation to its size. The key elements on the basis of which we can guess its spatial
organization are the gates (five in total)," the fundamental remains of the sacral com-
plex in the southeast corner and the hammam next to the Danube wall. The positions
of the gates indicate the possible directions of providing the most important commu-
nications and the assumed central position of the main city square with the cathedral
church of St. Annunciation. Its possible disposition causes numerous controversies.'*
It was demolished in 1459, and the cannon tower at the confluence of the Jezava and
the Danube was built from its construction material.'s

In the southeast corner are the fundamental remains of a sacral complex with
a complex structure, which was extended and significantly remodeled several times
(fig. 7). Apparently, before the construction of the Fortress, a one-nave church with
a shallow semicircular apse in the east and a square chancel in the west was built.
During the period of the Despot Durad’s rule, two square choirs, a deeper horseshoe-
shaped altar apse and triconchal chapels were added to the narthex, on the north
and south sides.'” The church was transformed into a mosque with new alterations
and additions first in 1439 and then in 1459, while during the Austrian rule it was
used as a Catholic church. The dating of individual construction phases and their
interpretation in the literature differ."®

After 1459, the city developed intensively and acquired a number of religious,
public and economic buildings, and the population lived in hamlets."” The only
building from that period visible today is the hamam, which was built between
1485 and 1490 by the Danube rampart by the administrator of the sultan’s treasury,
Firuz-aga.”

During the Austrian rule at the beginning of the 18™ century, the city was ad-
ditionally protected by a palisade rampart, which included strategic elevations in the
area, due to possible artillery attacks* (fig. 8). Its traces are no longer visible due to
the nature of the material.

From the mid-16" to the early 20" century, the army was mostly stationed in
the city, so that the buildings in its interior were mostly for military purposes, about
which there are indirect data, but there are no visible remains of them today.

14 M. Popovi¢, Kapije smederevskog grada, Starinar 28-29 (1977/1978) 213-230.

15 M. Popovi¢, Ka problemu srednjovekovnih crkvi smederevskog grada, Starinar 50 (2000) 201-219;
D. Crnéevi¢, O moguéoj prvobitnoj funkciji crkve Uspenja presvete Bogorodice u Smedrevu, Istorij-
ski ¢asopis 54 (2007) 63-91; S. Kati¢, Mitropolijska crkva Blagovestenja, Istorijski ¢asopis 69 (2020)
107-126.

16  S. Nenadovi¢, Razmisljanja o arhitekturi crkve Blagovestenja despota Purda Brankovica u Smederevu,
Zbornik Narodnog muzeja 9-10 (1979) 403-424.

17 M. Vuksan, et al., Kraljevi i svetitelji srpski: katalog izloZbe, Beograd 2021, 288-289 (D. R.).

18  Popovi¢ (2000), op. cit. 201-219.

19 Kati¢, Popovic, op. cit. 79-116.

20  S.Kati¢, A. Krsti¢, Firuz Agha and his hammam in Smederevo, Starinar 68 (2018) 191-210.

21 L Zdravkovi¢ Stari planovi u zbirkama nekih ustanova u Becu, Zbornik zastite spomenika kulture 16
(1965) 219-230; L. Pavlovi¢ Istorija Smedereva u reci i slici, 209-250.
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DESTRUCTION

The first destructions followed immediately after the construction of the largest part of
the fortification in 1439, during the siege in which cannons were used for the first time,
as well as during two unsuccessful sieges in 1454 and 1456, when cannons were used by
both attackers and defenders.”

Artillery was much more deadly in 1688 in Austria and especially in 1690 during
the Turkish siege when the city was burned in retaliation after the conquest.” Smederevo
was captured without a fight in 1718 and 1739, so there was no destruction, but in the
Austrian-Turkish wars during Koc¢ina Krajina period from 1788 to 1791, the fortress
changed owners several times, and in 1790 cannons were also used in the Austrian at-
tack.?* In 1805, the insurgents also used cannons for their attack, but the destruction was
less severe, because their firepower was weak.”

The end of the 19th century brought the first major peacetime destruction when the
Smederevo - Velika Plana railway was built in 1881.% Then, due to the laying of tracks, the
cannon tower in front of the main entrance and the western part of the outer city rampart
were demolished, and the defensive trench in front of it was buried.

Despite numerous sufferings, the Smederevo Fortress was exceptionally well pre-
served until the great wars of the 20" century (fig. 9).

In the First World War, in October 1915, the main target in the three-day artillery
bombardment of the city from the Banat coast was the Fortified Castle and the Danube
rampart, as well as the entire town. The Donjon tower and the double gate were mostly
destroyed, and the cannon tower at the mouth was also significantly damaged. A large
breach was made on the Danube rampart, through which the Germans entered the For-
tress after forcing the Danube.” Due to the force of the artillery strikes, the ground gave
way and Jerina’s tower and the wall with the windows tilted towards the north. During the
occupation, the outer rampart on the city side from the cannon tower in front of the main
entrance to Jezava was demolished, and part of the trench in front of the outer rampart
was buried. On the Varo$ rampart, a wide opening was made at the second gate for the
railway to be carried inside the Fortress. Most of the outer Jezava wall was demolished in
order to form a railway for the transport of military equipment, which was transferred
over the Danube by a pontoon bridge.

The Second World War brought even greater suffering. At the very beginning of
the war, on 5 June 1941, inside the fortress there was a terrible explosion of rifle, artillery
and aircraft ammunition, fuel, explosive materials and other confiscated war equipment,

22 Spremi¢, op. cit. 141.

23 T Kati¢, Tursko osvajanje Srbije 1690. godine, Studia Osmanica 1 (2012) 86-90.

24 L. Pavlovi¢, Istorija Smedereva u reci i slici, Smederevo 1980, 213-242.

25 Ibid. 254.

26 . S.Nikoli¢, Istorija Zeleznica Srbije, Vojvodine, Crne Gore i Kosova, Beograd 1980, 91-93.
27 J. D. Milenkovi¢, Sumadijska divizija prvog poziva, Kragujevac 1930.
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which was brought to Smederevo after the capitulation of the Kingdom of Yugoslavia.?®
Due to the force of the explosion, the central part of the Varo$ rampart was damaged
the most, where the main Varo$ gate, tower 15 and 60 m of the rampart west of the gate
were completely destroyed (fig. 10). Part of the Danube rampart was also damaged, and
most of the battlements on the Fortress were destroyed. In the central part of the Varo$
rampart, in the direction of the main impact, the explosion caused an almost tectonic
movement of the ground, which pushed the foundation zone of the rampart to the south,
in the central part, by a full 7 m (fig. 11).

The damaged city had not yet recovered from the explosion, and three bombings
by Anglo-American aviation followed in 1944.* Then, on the southern rampart of the
Fortified Castle, tower 3 was mostly destroyed, the foundations of towers 9 and 11 were
damaged (which leaned towards the south), tower 17, which was already damaged, col-
lapsed, the hammam, and the cannon tower near the bridge on the Jezava was stricken.

The condition of the Smederevo Fortress after the destruction it suffered in the great
wars was catastrophic.

RESEARCH AND RESTORATION

The city of Smederevo first attracted the attention of spies, chroniclers and travel writers,
who left valuable written data and drawings. The turning point in the study is repre-
sented by the work of P. Popovi¢, published in 1930 on the occasion of five centuries
since the construction of the Fortress,” which provides extensive documentation on
the appearance of the city before suffering in the Second World War. Smederevo was
studied studiously in research by A. Deroko.’ The extensive monograph by L. Pavlovi¢
is especially valuable, published in 1980,** and the capital study by M. Spremic, first
published in 1994.* In recent times, in the work by S. Kati¢,* attention is directed to
the sources from the Turkish archives, which significantly sheds light on the era of
Ottoman rule.

Archaeological research had been carried out successively since 1956, until 1980
they included the Fortified Castle, which was fully explored (A. Deroko, I. Zdravkovi¢,
D. Pribakovi¢, M. Popovi¢). Then the city gates (M. Popovi¢), the Sacral complex in the
southeast corner (M. Cunjak 1981-1986* and D. Radovanovi¢, revised in 2012*), as well
as the Varo$ Gate sector 1 (D. Radovanovi¢ 2019-2021) were investigated.

28 M. P.Lazi¢, Eksplozija u Smederevu 5. juna 1941. godine: 80 godina posle, Smederevo 2021.

29  S. Peri¢, Smederevski kraj u ratu 1941-1945, Smederevo 2019, 94-96, 100-101.

30  P.Popovi¢, Spomenica.

31  A.Deroko Smederevski grad, Starinar 2 (1951) 59-98.

32 L. Pavlovi¢, Istorija Smedereva.

33 Spremic, op. cit.

34  S. Kati¢, B. Popovi¢, Smederevska varo$ od 1459. godine do kraja 16. veka, Istorijski ¢asopis 62 (2013)
79-116.

35 M. Cunjak, Smederevska tvrdava, novija istrazivanja, drugo dopunjeno izdanje, Smederevo 2011.

36 M. Vuksan, op. cit.



Achievements of the Convention Concerning the Protection of World Cultural and Natural Heritage
50 Years of Duration

The main attention in the conservation and restoration works is devoted to the area
of the Fortified Castle. More serious works were started in 1958 and intensified in 1977
and were carried out continuously until 1994. According to the projects by J. Neskovi¢,
and in the organization of the Regional Institute for the Protection of Cultural Monuments
Smederevo, work was completed on the towers, ramparts and buildings of the Fortified
Castle, on the Danube rampart (except for the towers), the outer Danube rampart, the
cannon tower at the mouth and tower 10. After a long break, the works continued from
2007 to 2017, with the renovation of the Jezava rampart and extended from 2018 with the
renovation of the Varo$ rampart, static stabilization and partial conservation of Leaning
Tower 11 (fig. 12).

LANDMARKS ON THE WAY TO WORLD HERITAGE

The feat of building Smederevo was not based only on the need to preserve the state, but
much more on the idea of defending the value system. Before the eyes of contemporaries,
a deeply rooted world imbued with ancient, Eastern Roman, Orthodox-Christian and
Slavic heritage was disappearing. Constantinople, although its power was broken, still
represented the notion of an ideal, impregnable city, the guardian and symbol of precisely
those values, and that is why it was the main role model for the builders of Smederevo,
while the similar triangular shape of the base further emphasized such a vision. Although
it cannot be compared to Constantinople in terms of size, it still belongs to the ranks of the
largest fortified cities of its time, unique in its consistently implemented concept, which
has been preserved in its original architectural structure even after six stormy centuries.

With the fall of the city under Ottoman rule in 1459, the entire medieval era sym-
bolically came to an end, and the rich oral tradition about the last Orthodox Christian
capital became a centuries-old landmark for the preservation of national identity, espe-
cially important at the beginning of the 19" century, during the restoration of Serbia’s
statehood. Then Smederevo symbolically became the thread that connected medieval
and modern Serbian statehood.

Construction and decline left a very strong impression on contemporaries not only
in Serbia but also much wider. The memories have been passed down to the present day as
aliving tradition, especially preserved in folk literature and artistic creativity imbued with
motifs of sacrifice, faith, hope, doubt, betrayal and purification. The following historical
figures left a particularly impressive mark: Despot Purad, Despina Irina (Damned Jerina),
Sultanija Mara, Zmaj Ognjeni Vuk (Fiery Dragon Wolf) and Oblak Radoslav.

With the fall of the city under Ottoman rule in 1459, the entire medieval era sym-
bolically came to an end, and the rich oral tradition about the last Orthodox Christian
capital became a centuries-old landmark for the preservation of national identity, espe-
cially important at the beginning of the 19" century, during the restoration of Serbia’s
statehood. Then Smederevo symbolically became the thread that connected medieval
and modern Serbian statehood.

Unifying symbols of the feat of construction, superhuman sacrifice and tragic fall,
the new century’s catastrophic war destruction, especially in the great explosion of 1941,
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when the Fortress paradoxically did not protect its interior, yet it built a new city outside the
walls, brought new layers of legends and extended the life of old inherited traditions.

Vision, construction skill, economic power and organizational ability, as a pre-
requisite for building a new capital city, would not have resulted without perseverance,
unwavering determination, deep faith and the ruler’s willingness to sacrifice himself and
all those who often and unwillingly participated in its construction. In medieval Serbia,
there was also a specific natural tax obligation “to protect and build the city — urban
construction”.”’

That is how it was at the beginning of Smederevo Fortress’ path to world heritage.
In the modern context, any participation in preserving and building the spirit of the city
could be considered as a kind of modern city-building. It is a necessary obligation of the
inhabitants of today’s city to preserve the authenticity, integrity and universal value of
foreign concepts in today’s increasingly globalized and unified world.

In the complex and demanding process of nomination of the Smederevo Fortress
for the UNESCO World Heritage List,*® which takes place in an extremely competitive
environment, returning to the models and values from the beginning of the journey
could decisively contribute to its successful completion. Thus, a completely new chapter
of preservation of established value systems, necessary for our future uniqueness and
duration, would be opened.

37  D. M. Radovanovi¢, Smederevsko gradozidanije - Tvrdava kulture za grad kulture, Mons Aureus: ¢asopis
za knjizevnost, umetnost i drustvena pitanja 65-66 (2021) 197-205.

38  Smederevo Fortress, Date of submission: 15/04/2010; Criteria: (iv) (v); Category: Cultural; https://whc.
unesco.org/en/tentativelists/5538/ (accessed August 2023).
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HEJAH M. PALJOBAHOBUR

PervioHanHu 3aBof 3a 3alUTUTY CMIOMeHMKa KynType CMeaepeso

CMELEPEBCKA TBPBHABA OZL MPECTOHOI I'PALLA
[10 CBETCKE BAWTWHE

Haxon npujaBmpubamwa CMeepeBcke TBphaBe Ha IpeMMIHAPHY JIUCTY CBETCKe
OamtuHe YHecka 2010. rofyHe, HUCY IIpefy3MIMaHM Ja/by KOPaIy Koju 6¥1 BOAVIIN
Ka ieHoj HomuHauuju. OBaj paji je HacTao y TEXXIbY Jla Ce IIOHOBO IIOKPEHE ITPOILEC
¥ J1a TIOMOTHe y ofipeh1iBarby I/TaBHMX BpeTHOCHUX periepa Ha ITy Ty Ka JIMCTH CBEeTCKe
OamTHe.

[ToxBur M3rpajitbe HOBOT IIPECTOHOT T'Pajia HIje IIOYNBA0 CaMO Ha NMOTpebu
oYyBama Ap>kaBe, Beh MHOTO Bullle Ha uzieju ofbpaHe BpefHOCHOT cucteMa. Ilpen
OYMMa CaBPeMeHMKa HeCTajao je 1yOOKO yKOPemeHM CBEeT MPOXKeT aHTUYKIM, JC-
TOYHO POMEjCKIM, IPaBOC/IaBHO-XpuurhaHCKUM 1 cioBeHCKuM Hacnehewm, ca apn-
rpaZioM Kao y30pOM MJiea/IHOT, HeOCBOjUBOT I'Pajia, 9yBapa ¥ CMMO0JIa YIPaBO TUX
BPEHOCTI, IOK je CIMYHA TPOyraoHa popMa OCHOBE TaKBY BU3Ujy JOJATHO HAI/Ia-
masana. Craja y pen HajBehnx yrBpheHux rpajoa cBora BpeMeHa, jeAMHCTBEHOT
10 JOC/IEJHO CIIPOBEJEHO] 3aMUCIIN, KOja je Y MSBOPHOM apXUTEKTOHCKOM CKJIOIY
OCTaJla OYyBaHa [0 JaHac.

ITapom CmenepeBal459. rogyHe, cMMOOIIYHO je 3a0KPYXKeHa YATaBa CPebo-
BEKOBHa €I10Xa, a 60TaTo yCMEHO Ipefiabe O MOC/IeIb0j TPABOCTaBHOj XpUIINaHCKOj
IIPECTOHMIM IIOCTAJIO j€ BUILIEBEKOBHI OPMjEHTUD OYyBarbha HAPOJHOT UIEHTUTETA,
noce6HO BaXXKHOT IIo4eTKoM 19. ctoneha, y Bpeme o6HOBe pxxkaBHOCTI Cpbuje. Tama
je CMeznepeBO CMOOIYHO IIOCTA/IO HUT KOja je IT0Be3asia CPeibOBEKOBHY U MOJEPHY
CPIICKY IP>KaBHOCT.

Vsrpapma v rmaji, OCTaBU/IM Cy BEOMa CHaXKaH YTHCAK Ha CABPEMEHNKE He CaMO 'y
Cp6uju Beh u Muoro mupe. Cehama cy npeHolIemeM OIICTaIa 0 JaHAIIbET BpeMeHa
Kao >KMBa TPajMIyja, IOCeOHO cayyBaHa Y HAPOJHO]j KIbVDKEBHOCTY ¥ YMETHIYKOM
crBapanaiTBy. HoBoBekoBHa KatacTpodaHa paTHa pasapama, JOHe/a Cy HoBe CIIoje-
Be JIETeH/V ¥ IPORY>KI/Ia )XKMBOT HacleheHnM npenamuma.

Nsrpagmwa CMmenepeBckor yTBpheHor rpajja, leroB HaIIM pasBoj M 3HA4aj, a
3aTVM TpParuyaH Iaji, 6pojHa pasaparma 1 00HaB/bamba, Kao 1 IIOTObA MCTPAKUBakba
VI HOBJ JKIBOT, IIOCTA/IM Cy HEPACKUIVIBY JIEJIOBY TOTOBO IIECT CTOTVHA FOfIMHA [1y-
TOT Tpajama, Koje je yOOKO YTKaHO Y MCTOPUjCKY, KYITYPHY ¥ [IyXOBHY TPaJiyILIujy
CPIICKOT Hapopa.

Cam HasuB CMefiepeBcKa TBphaBa Koju ce BpeMEHOM yCTa/No, He OfjpakaBa CBY
Ba)KHOCT, YTUIAj, CUMOO/IKY U cr1ojeBUTOCT CMefiepeBCKOT TPajia Y apXUTEKTOHCKOM,
IIPOCTOPHO-MCTOPUjCKOM M IIMBU/IM3AIMjCKOM KOHTEKCTY. BpeMeHOM je 11 3aHMMarbe 3a
II0je[IVIHe TeME U UICTOPUjCKe IIEPUOJE CTBOPIU/IO HEYPABHOTEXKEHY CIIMKY ITPOLIIOCTH
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VI CKpeHYJIO ITaXKiby ca He3a/joBoJ/baBajyher crama, craryca n 6ynyhnoctu Cmenepes-
cke TBpbhaBe. 3aT0 je HEOIIXOHO U3OLITPeHNje U IpounitheHnje carefjaBame beHe
IPOLIIOCTY, AYO/bYX BPEJHOCHNX C/I0jeBa U1 3HAYEHha, a UICTOBPEMEHO I L[eJIOBUTH]je
IpoMMIIIbake BbeHor bynyher passoja, ApymTBene ynore u yruiaja. [Toce6Ho ysu-
Majyhu y 063up BbeH reocTpaTellky MOMI0XKaj, MIecT cTofeha Zyr KOHTUMHYUTET 1
CUMOOIITYKY BPeJHOCT, KOjuMa Huje mocBehyBaHa JOBO/bHA IaXKIba.

Y CI0’KeHOM ¥ 3aXTeBHOM IIOCTYIKY HoMMHanuje CMeniepeBcke TBphase 3a
YHeCKOBY NMCTy CBeTCKe OallTMHe, KOjU ce OfBMja y U3y3eTHOj KOHKYpeHIMjH,
Bpahame y30p1Ma 1 BpeJHOCTIMA, KOj! Cy OpalbeH! HbeHOM U3TPa/IIbOM, MOTJIO 61
IPeCYAHO JONPUHETH YCIIEITHOM OKOHYAkbY IIPOlieca ¥ OTBAapamby HOBOT MOITIaB/ba
OYyBama yTeMe/beHVX BPEIHOCHNX CICTEeMa, HeOIIXOHNX 3a Halry Oyznyhy moce6-
HOCT U Tpajarme




